
 

 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick   leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations   
1. Overview City Budget and Finance (repeat presentation from earlier budget meeting 

tentative) 
2. West Branch Main Street Community Development Group 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to 

discuss any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

Agenda for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one 

motion being made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting January 16, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for Special Council Meeting (FY19 Budget) January 22, 

2018. 
3. Motion to Approve Class C beer license including Class B native wine and Sunday Sales 

privileges for Shivji LLC DBA BP Amoco Located at 401 Parkside Street. 
4. Motion to Approve a Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine).  Class B 

Native Wine with Sunday sales for Sal’s Little Italy. 
5. Motion to Appoint James Ellyson to the Park and Recreation Commission. 
6. Motion to Appoint Neil Korsmo to the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
7. Motion to Approve the Recruitment and Hiring of Temporary Part Time Program 

Assistant and Interns for summer programs. 
8. Approve Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Resolution 1682 – A Resolution Calling For The Cedar County Commission Of 

Elections To Conduct A Public Referendum On The Question Of Imposing A Local 
Hotel And Motel Tax In The City Of West Branch, Iowa At The Rate Of 7% And 
Designate An Election Date; Whereas, The Issue Passes Or Fails Based On A Simple 
Majority Vote By The Voters Of West Branch. 

2. Resolution 1681 – Approving Pedersen Valley Part Three Phase One, Lot 23 
Site Plan. 

3. Resolution 1683 – A Resolution Approving the Contract for the 2017 Hoover’s 
Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of $35,000.00. 

4.  Resolution 1685 – An Agreement between the City of West Branch, Iowa and the 
West Branch Animal Clinic for the Provision of Animal Care Services. 

5. Resolution 1686 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds. 
6. Resolution 1684 – A Resolution Approving a Merchant Agreement for Credit Card 

Payment Services. 

 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations 

 

  
 
Volunteer Hours (2017)  

 2535 Hours x $24.14* per hour = $ 61,194.90  

 *2016 Monetary Value: www.independentsector.org  

 2016 = 2739 Hours (After Accreditation Adjustment)  
o 2739 Hours x $23.65 = $64,777.35  

 2015 = 1301 Hours (After Accreditation Adjustment)  
 
 

City of West Branch  
 2017  

o $10,000.00  
35.45% reduction from previous year  
49.95% reduction since February 2016  

 2016  
o $15,500.00  

34.9% of annual budget  
16.2% reduction effective February 2016  

 
 

Events – Overall Overview  
Sweets for Success Fundraising Income: $ 13,148.70  
Donations collected for festivals: $ 14,006.88 *  
Expenses for festivals: $ 16,228.25  
Volunteer Labor Hours: 1,096.75 x $24.14 per labor hour = $26,475.55  
 
*Does NOT include any in-kind contributions.  
 
 

Events – Overview by Event  
 

Sweets for Success  
 
Income:  
$13,148.70 Action/Reservations/Open Desserts **RECORDING BREAKING**  
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
$13,148.70 Total Income 
 

Year in Review 
** 2017** 

 



 

 

Expenses:  
$ 1,112.00 Brick Arch Winery  
___________________________________ 
 
$ 1,112.00 Total Income  
 
In-kind:  
 

 $1,000.00 – Brick Arch Winery  

 50’ Bolt of Red Silk Fabric – It’s New Again  

 Auction Materials – Cotton Creek Quilt & Fabric Shoppe  

 Program Printing – Little Lights/Nature’s Grace Photography  

 42 Dessert were donated by area bakers.  
 
 
Volunteer Labor:  

 

 176.25 Hours x $24.14 per hour = $ 4,254.67  
 
 

Simply Summer  
 
Income:  
$ 135.00 S’Mores  
$ 185.00 Non-Alcoholic Summertime Beverages  
$ 695.00 Gate Cover  
$ 992.00 Raffle  
____________________________________________________ 
 
$ 2,090.50 Total Income  
 
Expenses:  
 
$ 750.00 Band  
$ 200.00 Security  
$ 170.00 Port-o-Jonny  
$ 353.00 Special Event Insurance  
$ 50.00 National Park Usage Permit  
$ 295.00 Movie Royalty  
$ 500.00 Advertising  
$ 40.26 Raffle Ticket Blanks  
__________________________________________________ 
 
$ 2,358.26 Total Expenses  
 
 
In-kind:  
 

 Movie Royalty – Hills Bank & Trust  

 Raffle Prize - $400.00 – Bruce & Peggy Jeffries and Donna & Vic Zender  
 
 
Volunteer Labor:  
 

 243.5 Hours x $24.14 per hour = $ 5878.09  
 
 



 

 

 
 

Hoover’s Home Town Days  
 
Income:  
 
$ 882.00 Raffle  
_________________________________________________ 
 
$ 882.00 Total Income  
 
 
Volunteer Labor:  
 

 109.5 Hours x $24.14 per hour = $ 2643.33 *  
 
*This total represents CDG Volunteer Hours only.  
 
 

Fall Festival  
 
Income:  
 
$ 239.57 Free-Will Donations  
____________________________________________________ 
 
$ 239.57 Total Income  
 
Expenses:  
 
$ 450.00 Advertising  
$ 75.49 Traveling Trophy  
__________________________________________________ 
 
$ 525.49 Total Expenses  
 
 
In-kind:  

 50 Medium Pumpkins – Cotton Creek Mill Quilt and Fabric Shoppe  

 50 Small Pumpkins – Kevin Rogers & Matt Brunscheen  

 Hayrack and hay bales – Chuck and Tamie Urmie  

 Truck to pull hayrack – Brown’s West Branch  

 Paper products for Chili Cook Off - Cotton Creek Mill Quilt and Fabric 
Shoppe  

 Bottled Water - Cotton Creek Mill Quilt and Fabric Shoppe  
 
Volunteer Labor:  

 156 Hours x $24.14 per hour = $ 3,795.84  
 
 

Restaurant Week  
 
In-kind:  

 

 Printing/Table Toppers/Bingo Cards – Main Street Sweet & Treats  
 



 

 

 
 

A Christmas Past  
 
Income:  
 
$ 6,675.00 Monetary Donations  
$ 400.00 Free-Will Donations (cash horse-drawn carriages)  
$ 2,106.00 Silent Auction  
$ 577.15 Merchandise Sales  
$ 1,036.00 Evergreen roping and wreaths  
_____________________________________________________ 
 
$10,794.15 Total Income  
 
Expenses:  
 
$ 6,600.00 Horse-drawn Carriages  
$ 2,400.00 Young Footliters  
$ 539.39 Newsletter/Schedule of Events  
$ 482.50 Special Event Insurance Policy  
$ 1.136.00 Evergreen roping and wreath  
$ 75.00 Street Urns  
______________________________________________________ 
 
$12,232.50 Total Expenses  
 
 
Additional In-kind:  
 

 Town Hall Fee waived – City of West Branch  

 Kids Fun Craft Supplies – Friday – West Branch Public Library/West Branch 
Parks & Rec  

 Marshmallows, chocolate, graham crackers, etc. – West Branch Lions Club  

 3600 Biscuits - Boys Scouts of America  

 1200 hot dogs, buns, etc. – West Branch Fire Department  

 175 dozen cookies, Joan Gibson and West Branch Fire Auxiliary  

 $275.00 Craft Supplies – Saturday – West Branch Community Schools FFA 
Alumni  

 $125.00 Nation Park User Fee & Lights for horse-drawn carriages – Kevin 
Rogers & Matt Brunscheen  

 $1600.00 Oasis Electric/Dan Haub – National Park Tree  

 Delivery of signage, bricks, and sand – City of West Branch  

 Police Officer – West Branch Police Department  
 
 
Volunteer Labor:  
 

 411.5 Hours x $24.14 per hour = $ 9,933.61  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               January 16, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin  invited 

the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: 

Mayor Laughlin was present.  Council members:  Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman and Jordan 

Ellyson were present. Brian Pierce was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff: City 

Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Library Director 

Nick Shimmin, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Fire Chief Kevin 

Stoolman and Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Budget presentations: 

Public Works – Goodale presented his budget which include a 5% overall reduction.  Goodale said he had made 

reductions in the following areas:  general fund roads and streets, Road Use Tax (Roads & Streets), Water and 

Sewer funds, Storm Water and Cemetery funds.  Goodale said that although in reduced all areas, he was still 

hopeful to purchase a new plow truck with a dump box and one new lawn mower.  Goodale proposed increases to 

maintain vehicle equipment and other small purchases during the year to continue the same level of service Public 

Works currently provides. 

 

Parks & Recreation – Russell presented her budget to reflect a 5% overall reduction.  Areas affected include 

decreases in grounds care, office supplies, postage, recreation supplies, and some program changes.  Russell said 

that the areas cut did reflect actual numbers from the last budget so she was comfortable reducing in those areas.  

Total budget reduction equals $5,102.00. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting January 2, 2018. 

Motion to Approve the Renewal of Liquor License for “Fisher’s Market Nauvoo, IL dba Dewey’s Jack & Jill” 

located at 115 W. Main Street. 

Motion to Approve the Renewal of Liquor License for Sunday sales at “Herb & Lou’s”, located at 105 Downey 

Street, West Branch, IA. 

Approve Claims Report. 

 
EXPENDITURES     1/16/2018  
 
ALLIANT ENERGY     WATER TOWER     8,464.99  
AMAZON      BOOKS AND DVDS     434.81  
ASCAP      MUSIC LICENSE FEE     348.00  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      438.14  
BANKERS ADVERTISING COMPANY   NAME BADGES     62.00  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY    MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    344.91  
BEAN & BEAN     GRAVE OPENING     550.00  
BP AMOCO     BP AMOCO     337.65  
BUSINESS RADIO SALES    RADIO REPAIR     53.75  
CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL    PROGRAM SUPPLIES     196.91  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIE    WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    35.20  

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

DAN'S OVERHEAD DOORS & MOR  DOOR REPAIR      1,615.09  
ELDON C STUTSMAN INC   MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES     340.05  
FARMERS SUPPLY SALES INC   SUPPLIES       4.40  
HAWKINS INC    AZONE 15       455.45  
IMWCA     WORK COMP PMT 7      5,143.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY AMBULANCE S  MEDICAL SUPPLIES      33.29  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.   GARBAGE STICKERS      625.00  
KOCH BROTHERS INC    COPIER MAINTENANCE     294.62  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.    SIREN @ GREENVIEW      145.70  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC   PAVING-SEWER REPAIR     9,370.00  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC   SUMP PUMP      177.00  
MENARDS     SUPPLIES       1,426.13  
MID-STATES ORGANIZED CRIME   2018 MEMBERSHIP      100.00  
MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE   REPAIR OSH KOSH      2,201.12  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC    OASIS ELECTRIC LLC      667.81  
OLSON, KEVIN D    LEGAL SERVICES - JANUARY 2018     1,500.00  
OMNISITE     WIRELESS SERVICE      360.00  
OVERDRIVE INC    BOOKS & AUDIO BOOKS     130.49  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWE  REPLENISH POSTAGE METER     1,003.50  
PYRAMID SERVICES INC.   SUPPLIES       268.57  
QUAD CITY SAFETY INC   CALIBRATION GAS      659.78  
QUALITY ENGRAVED SIGNS   NAME PLATES      60.00  
QUILL CORP    OFFICE SUPPLIES      206.65  
SCHIMBERG CO    HYDRANT REPAIR KIT      143.70  
SPEER FINANCIAL INC    FINANCING SERVICES      15,950.00  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB    LAB ANALYSIS      26.00  
SUPPLYWORKS    JANITORIAL SUPPLIES      74.22  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE   COPIER PURCHASE & LEASE     2,386.85  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC  DVDS & PROGRAM SUPPLIES     197.74  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY DEVE  DONATION FOR SIGN      300.00  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS   VEHICLE REPAIR      231.41  
WEST BRANCH TIMES    LEGAL NOTICES & ADVERTISING     931.14  
WEX BANK     VEHICLE FUEL      1,218.47  
ZEPHYR PRINTING & DESIGN,   MAPS       1,144.68  
TOTAL            60,658.22  
 
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS     
BEAUTIFUL LAND PRODUCTS   UTILITY REFUND      14.68  
CARTER, SHERRY    UTILITY REFUND      38.00  
LEGACY HOMES    UTILITY REFUND      111.57  
BRICK, LESLIE    MILEAGE       21.41  
JULIE HIME    VIDEOGRAPY SERVICES     100.00  
TOTAL            285.66  
 
PAYROLL 1-12-18           42,401.45  
TOTAL EXPENDITURES          103,345.33  
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND     33,938.03  
022   CIVIC CENTER     442.25  
031   LIBRARY     7,462.75  
036   TORT LIABILITY     4,751.02  
110   ROAD USE TAX     8,959.91  
112   TRUST & AGENCY   4,420.99  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY  11,764.36  
309   PHASE I PARK IMPROVEMENTS  160.16  
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE   1,874.26  
314   N FIRST ST IMPROVEMENTS   1,424.37  
318   COLLEGE ST & 2ND ST IMPROVEMENTS  726.85  
600   WATER FUND     10,139.75  
610   SEWER FUND     17,280.63  
 
GRAND TOTAL     103,345.33 
 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Miller to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman, 

Goodweiler.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.  



 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to Approve the annual Mayoral Appointments./Move to action 

Mayor Pro Tem- Colton Miller 

Official City Newspaper – West Branch Times 

Animal Control Facility – West Branch Animal Clinic 

City Engineer – Dave Schechinger, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
Resolution 1680 – Accepting bids and awarding the construction contract for the Cubby Park Improvements 

Project./Move to action 

Fehr Graham’s Nate Kass, reported that five responsive bids were received for the project.  One non-responsive 

bid was received unsigned and was not read at the bid opening.  Of the five responsive bids received, the lowest 

bid was 4.4% above engineer’s estimates.  Needham Construction from Walcott, Iowa was the low bidder with a 

base bid of $2,457,930.69.  The project bid also included options for fencing, ball field lighting and dugouts 

which the low bidder was also Needham Construction.  Kass said reference checks were made and all comments 

received were excellent.  He said Needham was known to be fantastic to work with, has good equipment and a 

great work force.  The Council discussed the fencing, lighting and dugout options and chose option A for each 

totaling an additional $487,496.70.  The final construction costs for the project is estimated at $2,945,427.39.  

Kass also said that Needham could meet all of the pipeline’s insurance requirements.  Kass recommended 

awarding the contact to Needham Construction of Walcott, Iowa. 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1680.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Ellyson.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Motion to Approve Main Street Water Main Improvement Pay Estimate No. 3./Move to action. 

Schechinger commented that initial seeding was done in the fall, however the contractor has a two year bond that 

requires them to ensure that the seeding is completed and sufficient. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
Motion to Approve and Accept the Main Street Water Main Improvements Certificate of Completion./Move to 

action 

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, Stoolman, Goodweiler.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  

None.  Motion carried.   

 
Public Hearing: On proposal to enter into a General Obligation Loan Agreement. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 8:43 p.m.  Finance Officer Edgar explained that the City used Road Use 

Tax dollars to fund this capital project.  When the General Obligation Loan was borrowed, this project was 

inadvertently omitted to show that a portion of the loan proceeds were to pay back this Capital Project.  Edgar 

said that no additional borrowing was taking place, that this was just a necessary public hearing allowing the City 

to be able to reimburse the Road Use Tax Fund.  There were no public comments.  Public Hearing closed at 8:45 

p.m. 
 
Resolution 1679 – A Resolution taking additional action on proposal to enter into a General Obligation Loan 

Agreement./Move to action 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1679.  AYES:  Stoolman, Goodweiler, Miller, 

Ellyson.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 



 

 

Discussion: Budget Proposal to Pursue an Overtime Reduction Plan and to Pursue a 2% Cross the Board Cost of 

Living Adjustment for City Employees. 

Jones proposed an overtime reduction plan stating that the anticipated overtime budget for FY19 is $61, 284.01 

(in increase of 1.33 % over the current budget).  Jones said he has been working with Finance Officer Edgar on 

developing an overtime reduction plan and suggesting a 50% reduction for FY19 for department directors and key 

management personnel.  In addition, Jones suggested the idea of moving all department directors to salary from 

hourly wages to help protect the overtime budget.  Councilperson Miller and Mayor Laughlin were not in favor of 

the change.  Miller stated that he felt certain situations require overtime and since the department directors were 

also ‘working’ directors, “not just sitting at a desk”, they should be compensated for the overtime hours as 

needed.  Jones asked the Council to consider the idea and said he would be more information back to the next 

salary budget discussion. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT  
Jones reported on the Waste Water Task Force recent meeting and said he would recommend that Dave 

Schechinger, Veenstra & Kimm be officially accepted as the pre-design engineer for the project.  He also invited 

council members and mayor to a small group budget and finance orientation with Finance Officer Edgar and 

himself.  Jones also said he had reached out to the city attorney on getting an update from Casey’s on the 

petroleum leak the DNR alerted the City about in December.   

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Not available. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Mayor Laughlin provided an update on the Croell Redi Mix phase one site review.  Laughlin also said that the 

Planning & Zoning Commission would be discussing the Complete Streets chapter which would address street 

widths.  Laughlin also said he was working with the National Park Service on the possibility of installing an electric 

vehicle charging station. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting by Miller, second by Ellyson.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council 

meeting adjourned at 9:27 p.m. 

 

 

                      _________________________________________  

                                      Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     Special City Council Meeting                     January 22, 2018  
Council Chambers                                          (FY19 Budget)                                        6:30 p.m. 

  
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Mayor Pro Tem 

Miller invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Roll call: Mayor Laughlin was absent.  Council members:  Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman, Brian 

Pierce and Jordan Ellyson were present. Mayor Laughlin arrived at 7:15 p.m.  Miller welcomed the audience and the 

following City staff: City Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon 

Edgar, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, Park & Recreation Director Melissa 

Russell and Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Budget presentations: 

General Funds Revenue – Finance Officer Edgar said he had been working on the budget and provided copies of 

the draft FY19 budget form 16-142 to the Council.  Edgar reviewed the form highlighting several general fund 

revenue line items and said that although property assessments have increased from last year, the budget outlook 

was concerning.  He also provided information on current outstanding debts and said he was very worried with the 

debt level and preliminary estimates may result in a tax increase.  When asked why, Edgar reported that a few 

projects completed in 2017 were not funded with the previous budget and general funds were used to pay for them.   

That resulted in ‘borrowing’ from other funds to pay for the projects, but leaves the general fund short for other 

obligations.  Edgar also stated that he had concerns with the College Street Bridge project and the additional 

improvements to North Second Street as that portion is also not funded.  The Council requested additional detailed 

information to further assess the situation.  A few council members said they were not in favor of a tax increase.  

They also said they were unaware of Edgar’s findings that some projects were not funded as they were lead to 

believe. 

 

Fee Schedule Presentation – Deputy Clerk Brick presented the current West Branch     Schedule of Fees and said 

that during a recent review she found that the schedule to be incomplete and that many more fees were currently in 

place but not listed on the schedule.  Brick requested adding additional existing fees to the schedule in order to 

remain transparent to the public.  She also said that during this review, it was apparent that some fees had not been 

reviewed for many years and should be looked at to determine if they were reflective of current rates.  Brick said 

she was working with department directors to review all fees and would bring back suggestions for potential user 

fee increases. 

 

Hotel Motel Tax – City Administrator Jones said he had done some research on adding a hotel motel tax as an 

additional revenue generator.  He listed other surrounding communities that have the tax and noted that although 

the additional revenue it generates is not substantial in smaller communities, he felt it was worth pursuing.  The 

Council felt it was a good idea and directed Jones to pursue the tax. 

 

Administration Budget: 

 

Economic and Community Development – Jones said as with other department requests, he reduced this budget by 

5% as well.  Jones recommended reductions in the   fireworks for Hoover’s Hometown Days, a temporary 

discontinuation of funding the blacksmith at the National Park Service (NPS) for at least one year, summer concert 

series for performances in June only (in which the City would pay for two and NPS pay for two).  Jones said he 

was expecting Community Development Group (CDG) to request additional help with the carriage rides for 

Christmas Past.  CDG will present their request at the February 5th meeting.   

 Consent Item 2 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

 

General Government – Jones said he was willing to forego one year of his ICMA credentialing per his contractual 

employment agreement with the City.  Jones agreed that the next few budgets will be challenging with trying to 

pay down current debt and that all future projects will be investigated and scrutinized more thoroughly before 

implementation.   

 

Capital Improvements – Jones reported that Goodale was getting prices on the West Branch Village Trail project 

and recruiting volunteers to help keep costs down.  But that no other capital projects would be taken on for a few 

years. 

 

Fire Department – Stoolman presented the fire department budget with the proposed 5% reduction.  He noted areas 

where he was able to cut were based on actual expenditures from the FY17 budget.  Stoolman did suggest to set 

aside $1000 for emergency siren repairs, but said the Council could remove it if they needed.  Otherwise with the 

proposed budget and the expected income, Stoolman presented a balanced budget. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
No items to approve. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to direct the City Administrator to include an across the board 2% cost of living adjustment (COLA) for 

city employees and be reflected in the City Administrators recommended budget. /Move to action. 

Jones said the purpose of the 2% increase was based on Federal Social Security Administration announcement.  He 

further explained that COLA is to ensure the purchase power of the Social Security and Supplement Security 

Income benefit is not eroded by inflation.  Stoolman commented that she would like to see future employee 

increases based on employee performance rather than across the board.  Other council members agreed but said 

that would take some backend work to accomplish standards for determining compensation levels but felt it was 

something to move toward. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Goodweiler.  AYES:  Ellyson, Goodweiler, Miller, Stoolman, Pierce.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Discussion – Director’s Salary Proposal 

Jones said that three years of data was reviewed to determine actual over-time hours used in determining a fair 

compensation adjustment for the department directors.  In doing so, Jones said he was able to come to an 

agreement with the current directors on moving them from an hourly wage to an annual salary basis.  This change 

will result in an approximately $10,000 dollar savings.  This change is intended to take place on July 1, 2018.  

Laughlin asked how the directors felt about the change.  Parks & Recreation Director Russell said she was in favor 

of the change as it would help her do her job and provide the flexibility it would provide based on recreation 

programs.  Goodale said he was fine with it since he was not taking a pay cut since he currently uses almost all of 

his overtime each year.  Horihan said he was also okay with the change and said he would be making some internal 

changes and having other members of the department cover shifts when in the past he would cover.  Stoolman 

suggested that part-time officers cover shifts for full-time officers when possible to keep over-time costs down. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT  
No additional comments. 

 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Not available. 



 

 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Stoolman suggested that the City consider hiring a full-time fire chief in the future.  Stoolman recognizes that that 

role is important and takes a lot of time.  She also said that the current chief does a great job but that the 

responsibility does take him away from his current owned business which results in a loss of income.  Finding 

someone else to replace him will be difficult.  Goodweiler said he supports the idea. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting by Miller, second by Ellyson.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council 

meeting adjourned at 9:29 p.m. 

 

                      _________________________________________  

                                      Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Class C beer license including Class B native 

wine and Sunday Sales privileges for Shivji LLC DBA BP Amoco 

Located at 401Parkside Street.  

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  January 29, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Approve Class C beer license including Class B native wine and Sunday Sales privileges 

for Shivji LLC DBA BP Amoco.  Renewal effective February 20, 2018 through February 

19, 2019. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Sal’s Little Italy New Liquor License  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick  

DATE:  January 23, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

  
Approve Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine), Class B Native Wine with 

Sunday sales for Sal’s Little Italy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council  

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Appoint James Ellyson to the Park & Recreation Commission 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  January 29, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:   

 

James Ellyson has applied for a Park & Recreation Commission vacancy.  James has been 

actively involved with recreation activities for several years and has been a volunteer coach 

for various programs. 

 

City Council Appointment/Reappointments: 

Park & Recreation Commission:  Appointment, James Ellyson, term expires 

12/31/2018   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council on this topic 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

 
 

      REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Appoint Neil Korsmo to the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy Clerk, Leslie Brick 

DATE:  January 29, 2018 

     

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Neil Korsmo has applied for a Zoning Board of Adjustment vacancy.  Neil possesses clear 

decision making and evaluation skills and has some background knowledge of zoning 

ordinances.   

 

City Council Appointment/Reappointments: 

Zoning Board of Adjustment:  Appointment, Neil Korsmo, term expires 12/31/2022  
 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Appointment 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Recruitment and Hiring of Temporary Part 

Time Program Assistant and Interns for summer programs. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  February 1, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The West Branch Parks and Recreation Department currently hires Temporary Counselors 

and Interns during the summer to assist with programs and field maintenance. 
 
It is staff recommendation to add a Temporary Part Time Program Assistant position.   The 

Program Assistant will perform many of the same duties as the Counselors and Interns. 

This position will be responsible for recreation activities and field maintenance in the event 

the Parks and Recreation Director is not available.   
 
The Temporary Part Time Program Assistant will remain on the payroll year-round and 

work on an as needed basis.   
 
It is the staff recommendation to offering a starting pay of up to $12.50 an hour.   

Temporary positions are not eligible for benefits.  1st year Temporary Counselors are paid 

$10.50 an hour.  Interns are paid $11 an hour.  $12.50 an hour for the Part Time Program 

Assistant reflects the current starting wage in other communities as well as the increased 

responsibility Program Assistant will have in the event the Parks and Recreation Director 

is not available. 
 
Staff is not asking for an additional funds to cover the Temporary Part Time Program 

Assistant position.  It is anticipated the Program assistant will work around 325 hours a 

year. 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve a Temporary Part Time Program Assistant 

Position for West Branch Parks and Recreation. 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

      REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  February 1, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

These are routine expenditure that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 8 



 

 

  



 

 

   
 

 

   

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1682 – A Resolution Calling For The Cedar County 

Commission Of Elections To Conduct A Public Referendum On 

The Question Of Imposing A Local Hotel And Motel Tax In The 

City Of West Branch, Iowa At The Rate Of 7% And Designate An 

Election Date; Whereas, The Issue Passes Or Fails Based On A 

Simple Majority Vote By The Voters Of West Branch.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  January 29, 2018 
     
BACKGROUND: 

The Hotel/Motel Tax is a locally imposed lodging tax that is collected by the State from 

within the corporate boundaries of the City and remitted to the City on a quarterly basis.  

Currently, 159 Iowan Cities impose a Hotel/Motel Tax.  Iowa law (423A.4) currently 

limits a City to a Hotel/Motel tax rate not to exceed 7%.  Voters in the City of West 

Branch would have to approve the Hotel/Motel Tax rate.  Once imposed, the hotel/motel 

tax must remain in effect at the imposed rate a minimum of one year.  Additionally, the 

rate imposed can only be changed in increments of one or more full percentage points.  

Under State Law (Chapter 423A), the Hotel/Motel tax revenue remitted to the City, a 

minimum of 50% must be spent for recreation, convention, or cultural, or entertainment 

facilities.  The remaining derived from Hotel/Motel tax is credited to the General Fund of 

the City and may be spent on any of its operations. 
 

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

Frequently asked Questions 

 
 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:      



 

 

RESOLUTION 1682 

 

A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR THE CEDER COUNTY COMMISSION OF 

ELECTIONS TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC REFERENDUM ON THE QUESTION 

OF IMPOSING A LOCAL HOTEL AND MOTEL TAX IN THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA AT THE RATE OF 7% AND DESIGNATE AN ELECTION 

DATE; WHEREAS, THE ISSUE PASSES OR FAILS BASED ON A SIMPLE 

MAJORITY VOTE BY THE VOTERS OF WEST BRANCH. 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 423A of the Code of Iowa authorizes the imposition of a 

Hotel and Motel tax after an election in which the majority of the electors vote in the 

affirmative of the question of whether said Hotel and Motel tax should be imposed in the 

City; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch declares its intent to 

participate in a regular citywide election for the purpose of permitting the electorate to 

pass upon the proposition of imposing a seven percent (7%) Hotel and Motel tax for the 

City of West Branch according to Chapter 423A of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch as follows: 

 Section 1.  DEFINITIONS 

 Unless otherwise expressly stated or the context clearly indicates a different 

intention, the following terms shall, for the purpose of this chapter, have the 

meanings in the section: 

  

“Hotel” and “Motel” shall be deemed to mean any hotel, motel, inn, public 

lodging house, rooming house, mobile home, house boat which is tangible 

personal property, or tourist court, or in any place where sleeping 

accommodations are furnished to transient guests for rent, whether with or 

without meals; except the renting of sleeping rooms in dormitories and in 

memorial unions at all universities and colleges in the State of Iowa and the 

guests of a religious institution if the property is exempt under section 427.1, 

subsection 8 of the Code of Iowa, and the purpose of renting is to be proved a 

place for a religious retreat of function and not a place for transient guests 

generally. 

 

 “Renting” and “rent” shall include any kind of direct or indirect charge for such 

sleeping rooms, apartments, or sleeping quarters, or their use. 

  

Section 2.  TAX RATE 

 A tax is hereby imposed upon the gross receipts from the renting of any and all 

rooms, apartments, or sleeping quarters in any hotel or motel as defined in this 

chapter at the rate of 7 percent (7%) of such gross receipts derived from the 

renting of a room, apartment, or sleeping quarter while rented by the same person 

for a period of not more than 31 consecutive days.   

  

 



 

 

Section 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 The tax herein above established shall be imposed only after an election at which 

a majority of those voting on the questions favor the imposition of such tax.  In 

the event that the tax is approved at such election, it shall then be imposed upon 

the 1st day of June, 2018 or the 1st day of January, 2019, following the notification 

of the director of revenue and finance. 

 

 Section 4.  PAYMENT OF TAX 

 Such tax shall be paid as is provided in Chapter 423 A, Code of Iowa, and the 

proceeds of such tax shall be used for the purposes stated in subsection 4 thereof, 

as follows: 

“The revenue derived from any hotel and motel tax authorized by this chapter 

shall be used as follows: 

a. Each county or city which levies the tax shall spend at least fifty percent of 

the revenues derived for economic development purposes; which shall 

include, the acquisition of sites for, or constructing, improving, enlarging, 

equipping, repairing, operating, or maintaining of recreation, convention, 

cultural, or entertainment facilities including but not limited to memorial 

buildings, halls and monuments, civic center convention buildings, 

auditoriums, coliseums, and parking areas or facilities located at those 

recreation, convention, cultural, or entertainment facilities or the payment of 

principal and interest, when due, on bonds or other evidence of indebtedness 

issued by the county or city for those recreation, convention, cultural, or 

entertainment facilities; or for the promotion and encouragement of tourist and 

convention business in the city or county and surrounding areas. 

b.  The remaining revenue may be spent by the city or county which levies the 

tax for any city or county operations authorized by law as a proper purpose for 

the expenditure within statuary limitations of city or county revenues derived 

from ad valorem taxes. 

c. Any city or county which levies and collects the hotel and motel tax 

authorized by this chapter may pledge irrevocably an amount of the revenues 

derived there from for each of the years the bonds remain outstanding to the 

payment of bonds which the city or county may issue for one or more of the 

purposes set forth in paragraph ‘a’ of this subsection.  Any revenue pledged to 

the payment of such bonds may be credited to the spending requirement of 

paragraph ‘a’ of this subsection. 

Section 5.  That the voting place or places for said election, and the hours of the 

polls shall be opened and closed shall be as set out in the notice of election, said 

notice to be prepared and approved by the County Commissioner of Elections. 

 

Section 6.  That the form of ballot to be used at said election shall be of the type 

authorized by the Code of Iowa that will permit the use of electronic counters and 

will be in substantially the form set forth in the Notice of Election.  That, if more 

than one public measure shall be submitted to the electors at the time of the said 

election; all such measures shall be printed upon the ballot. 



 

 

Section 7.  That the Auditor of Cedar County, Iowa, being the County 

Commissioner of Elections, is hereby directed to publish the notice of election 

once in “The West Branch Times” being a legal newspaper, printed wholly in the 

English language as defined by Section 618.3 of the Code of Iowa, published in 

said City and of general circulation therein, said publication to be not less than 

four days nor more than twenty days prior to the date of said election. 

 

Section 9.  That the County Commissioner of Elections shall cause to be prepared 

all such ballots and election registers and other supplies as may be necessary for 

the proper and legal conduct of said election.  The Clerk is hereby authorized and 

direct to cooperate with said Commission of Elections and to do and prepare all 

necessary matters in order to make said election legal and valid. 

 

Section 10.  That the Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this 

Resolution in the office of the County Commissioner of Elections, which filing 

shall also constitute the “written notice” to the County Commissioner of Elections 

of the election date required to be given by the governing body under the 

provision of Chapter 47 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, approved and adopted that the City Council 

hereby directs the City Clerk to execute any and all documentation necessary in order to 

facilitate said resolution and subsequent election in the City of West Branch, Iowa. 

 

Passed and approved this 6th day of February, 2018. 

 

  

 

 

  ___________________________________ 

  Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

Attest: 

_______________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 1681 Approving Pedersen Valley Part Three Phase One, 

Lot 23 Site Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  January 9, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

Brian Shay will present a site plan for Lot 23 in the Pedersen Valley sub-division.  The 

proposed plan is to construct a 4-unit town home on Hilltop Drive.  The site plan was 

presented and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission on January 23, 2018. 

 

Dave Schechinger has provided his comments to the developer.  Public Works Director 

Matt Goodale was also consulted on this project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

  

RESOLUTION 1681 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING PEDERSEN VALLEY PART THREE PHASE 

ONE, LOT 23 SITE PLAN 
 

 

WHEREAS, Brian Shay has heretofore submitted a proposed Site Plan to construct 

multi-family housing located on Hilltop Drive in the City of West Branch, Iowa (the 

“Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan has heretofore been reviewed by City Staff, including 

the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

reviewed the Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the Project be 

and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 6th day of February, 2018. 

 

     

     

______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 

City Engineer’s Comments 



 

 

 

Developer’s Response 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1681 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING PEDERSEN VALLEY PART THREE PHASE 

ONE, LOT 23 SITE PLAN 
 

 

WHEREAS, Brian Shay has heretofore submitted a proposed Site Plan to construct 

multi-family housing located on Hilltop Drive in the City of West Branch, Iowa (the 

“Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan has heretofore been reviewed by City Staff, including 

the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

reviewed the Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the Project be 

and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 6th day of February, 2018. 

 

     

     

______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1683 – A Resolution Approving the Contract for the 

2017 Hoover’s Hometown Days Celebration in the Amount of 

$35,000.00. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  January 29, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter a date.  
 Click here to enter text. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Approval Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

 Non Consent Item 3 

 The Fire Works Display for Hoover Home Town Days has been under considerable 

discussion as this year’s budget constraints have raised question as to the best use of limited 

public funds.  It has been a struggle for the Hoover Hometown Days Committee, because it is 

widely accepted that many of those who frequent the festival are in attendance for the 

anticipation of the Fireworks Display.  For these reasons, the committee has agreed to decrease 

the amount to be spent on the Fireworks Display this year.  

 

It has been decreased $10,000 in total with $5,000 decrease in cost by shorten the show from 

18 minutes to 15 minutes; and $5,000 to come from donations.   

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1683 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING VARIOUS CONTRACTS FOR THE HOOVER’S 

HOMETOWN DAYS CELEBRATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $35,000. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City’s premier event of the year is Hoover’s Hometown Days.  

A day that the community recognize the talents and contributions of Our Nation’s 31st 

President of the United States, Herbert Hoover; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2018 – 2019 budget for Hoover’s Hometown Days 

include funding for entertainment and services for the event; and 

 

 WHEREAS, J&M Displays, a firm that has provided this service to the City in 

the past, and have submitted a proposed service agreement in the amount of $35,000 to 

provide a fireworks display in the Herbert Hoover National Historic Site.  J&M Displays, 

also understands and is responsible for submitting all documentation required to gain a 

Special Use Permit from the National Park Service; which will be needed to provide a 

fireworks display in the National Park; and   

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned agreements are hereby approved.  Further, 

the Mayor is directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City. 

 

Passed and approved this 6th day of February, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1685 – An Agreement between the City of West Branch, 

Iowa and the West Branch Animal Clinic for the Provision of 

Animal Care Services. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  January 31, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:   

In our on-going effort to review, update, and formalize the city’s service contracts; the 

Animal Care Services Agreement was discovered to not to have a formal agreement.  It 

had been a long lasting hand shake agreement that had no written or signed agreed terms.  

The West Branch Animal Clinic is under new ownership and we look forward to continuing 

our partnership with the company.  The previous informal agreement is as follows: 
 
Old Arrangement (no written agreement): 

Cats – FELV / FIV / Heartworm Test  - $ 26.00       Maximum cost: $71.00 per animal 

 (3 day boarding)               - 
 
Dogs – No shots or Test    -        Maximum cost: $45.00 per animal 

 
 
New Proposed Agreement: 

Cats – FELV /FIV /Heartworm Test    -       Maximum cost: $50.00 per animal 

 Flea and Tick Treatment   -  

 (3 day boarding)    -  

   

Dogs – Heartworm /Lyme/ 

Anaplasmosis / Eurlichia   -       Maximum cost: $47.00 per animal  

 Flea and Tick Treatment 

(3 day boarding)    -  
   

Note: the vast majority of stray animals we receive are Cats. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 4 

$ 26.00 

$ 45.00 
 
$   0.00 

 

 
 
$21.00 

$14.00 

$15.00 

 

 

$17.00 

 

$15.00 

A $21.00 decrease per animal 

from our last arrangement 

A $2.00 increase per animal 

from our last arrangement 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA AND THE 

WEST BRANCH ANIMAL CLINIC FOR THE PROVISION OF ANIMAL CARE 

SERVICES 

 

This agreement is entered into between the City of West Branch, Iowa (“The City”) and the West 

Branch Animal Clinic (“The Clinic”). 

  

WHEREAS, The Clinic provides animal care services and operates a facility for the 

provisions of said services (“animal shelter”); 

  

WHEREAS, The Clinic is willing to provide animal care services to the City of West 

Branch, Iowa; and 

  

WHEREAS, The City recognizes the public health concerns of stray animals; and since 

The City has a need for the animal care services provided by The Clinic and desires to enter into 

this agreement for such services. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of West Branch and the West 

Branch Animal Clinic agrees to the following: 
 

1. Term 

This agreement shall be effective when approved and signed by the parties.  The duration of 

this agreement shall be 5 years unless terminated in the matter set forth below. 
 
2. Definitions 

“Animal care services” means housing and care in accordance with The Clinic’s policies 

and procedures and consistent with applicable Iowa Department of Agriculture and Land 

Stewardship requirements.  The Clinic shall provide no field services to The City except in 

mutually agreed special circumstances.  Upon these rare occurrences any additional 

expense will also be mutually agreed. 

“West Branch Animal” means an animal found within the incorporated city limits of West 

Branch, Iowa.  
 
3. Fee Schedule 

Below are the charges The Clinic will charge The City for any cat and dog that is a West 

Branch Animal. 
 
Cat 

FELV / FIV / Heartworm Test - $21.00 

1 Dose of Flea and Tick Treatment - $14.00 

Boarding per Day - $5.00 
 
Dog 

Heartworm / Lyme / Anaplasmosis / Eurlichia Test - $17.00 

1 Dose of Flea and Tick Treatment - $15.00 

Boarding per Day - $5.00 



 

 

West Branch Animals are to be provided boarding no more three days at the expense of 

The City.  The Clinic will also seek for ways to ensure services (entry cost) are not 

duplicated on animals that have already gone through the system (test and treatment).  The 

fee schedule will be reevaluated by The City and/or The Clinic each fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2018.  The Clinic will notify The City in writing of any proposed modification of 

the fee schedule effective the following July1.  The City and/or The Clinic reserves the 

right to terminate this agreement based on a refusal to accept any proposed modification of 

the fee schedule within sixty (60) days of any proposed modification. 
 
The Clinic agrees to invoice The City monthly for animal care shelter fees, and The City 

agrees to pay said invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt.  There is no limit to or cap on 

the number of days that an animal will remain in the animal shelter; However, The City 

will only be responsible or billed a maximum of 3 days boarding per animal.  

 

4. Acceptance of Animals 

A. Generally.  The Clinic agrees to accept any West Branch Animals brought in by the 

West Branch Police Department.  Any animals brought in to The Clinic by former pet 

owners will forgo any city paid boarding, treatment and/or test. 
 
B. In the event a West Branch Animal is reclaimed by its owner within the mandatory three 

(3) day stray hold period, the owner will pay a reclaim fee plus any applicable board 

fees prior to the animal being released to the owner and the City of West Branch will not 

be required to pay the animal care services fee. 
 
C. The Clinic will scan each animal for a microchip in order to locate its owner.  If no 

microchip number is found we will wait 3 days before advertising it as available for 

adoption to allow any owner time to come to The Clinic to claim the animal. 
 
D. If the animal is deemed unadoptable or a danger to staff, any potential adoptee or the 

public The Clinic will euthanize the animal.  A cat will also be euthanized if the animal 

test positive for FELV/FIV.  The cost of the vaccinations and spay or neuter will 

charged to the adoptee at a discounted rate prior to adoption. 

 

5. Quarantine 

A. Known Owner.  In cases of animal bites, where no current rabies vaccination is on file 

and quarantine is required by law, the parties agree that it is the owner’s responsibility to 

quarantine the animal at The Clinic.  If space is not available, the parties agree that it is 

the owner’s responsibility to quarantine the animal at a state licensed facility.  Animals 

with current vaccination status that do not pose a threat to the general public and can be 

adequately confined may be quarantined at the owner’s home for a period of ten (10) 

days from the start of quarantine. 
 
B. Stray Animals.  All stray biting animals with unknown rabies status will be quarantined 

at the Clinic, and with regard for the additional seven (7) days needed for quarantine The 

City will pay the fees related to the quarantine regardless where the animal was 

confined. 

 



 

 

6. Policies 

All animals will be subject to the policies of The Clinic. 

 

7. Termination 

Either party may terminate this agreement for any reason upon thirty (30) days written 

notice to the other party. 

 

8. Indemnification / Hold Harmless 

Each party agrees to release, indemnify and hold the other party, its officers and 

employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities, damages, business 

interruptions, delays, losses, claims, judgments, of any kind whatsoever, including all 

costs, attorney fees, and expenses incidental thereto, that may be suffered by, or charged 

to, the party by reason of any loss or damage to any property or injury to or death of any 

person arising out of or by reason of any breach, violation or non-performance by the 

other party or its servants, employees or agents of any covenant or condition of this 

agreement, or by any act or failure to act of those persons.  The parties shall not be liable 

for failure to perform under this agreement or for any loss, injury, damage or delay of 

any nature whatsoever resulting therefrom caused by any act of God, fire, flood, 

accident, strike, labor dispute, riot, insurrection, war or any other cause beyond the 

respective party’s control. 

 

9. Waiver 

The waiver by either party of any covenant or condition of this agreement shall not 

thereafter preclude such party from demanding performance in accordance with the 

terms of this agreement. 

 

10. Severability 

If a provision shall be finally declared void or illegal by any court or administrative 

agency having jurisdiction over the parties to this agreement, the entire agreement shall 

not be void, but the remaining provisions shall continue in effect as nearly as possible in 

accordance with the original intent of the parties. 

 

11. Entire Agreement 

This agreement sets forth all the covenants, promises, agreements, and conditions 

between the West Branch Animal Clinic and the City of West Branch concerning animal 

care services, and there are no other covenants, promises, agreements or conditions, 

either oral or written, between them.  This agreement may not be modified or amended 

in any manner except by an instrument in writing executed by the parties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

City of West Branch 
 

 

Date this ___________________________ day of __________________________, 2018 

 

City of West Branch, Iowa 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

West Branch Animal Clinic 
 

 

Date this ___________________________ day of __________________________, 2018 

 

West Branch Animal Clinic 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

Dr. Shawn Samuelson 

 

 

ATTEST: _______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1685 

 

AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA AND 

THE WEST BRANCH ANIMAL CLINIC FOR THE PROVISION OF ANIMAL 

CARE SERVICES. 

 

 

WHEREAS, The Clinic provides animal care services and operates a facility for the 

provisions of said services (“animal shelter”); 

  

WHEREAS, The Clinic is willing to provide animal care services to the City of West 

Branch, Iowa; and 

  

WHEREAS, The City recognizes the public health concerns of stray animals; and since 

The City has a need for the animal care services provided by The Clinic and desires to enter into 

this agreement for such services. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The City of West Branch and the West 

Branch Animal Clinic agrees to the attached agreement, and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned agreement is hereby approved.  Further, the 

Mayor is directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City. 

 

Passed and approved this 6th day of February, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1686 – A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  January 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

These are fund transfers to repay internal loans, fund capital projects and close capital 

projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1686 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa that the City 

Clerk is hereby authorized to transfer funds as follows: 

 

T/O General    (001) $ 32,104.00 (Phase 3 sidewalk payment) 

T/I Revolving Fund   (160) $ 32,104.00  

 

T/O Beranek Parking Imp Project Fund (311) $ 24,613.75 (to close project fund) 

T/I N First St Imp Project   (314) $   1,424.64 (to complete funding 

of project) 

T/I College St Bridge Project  (310) $ 23,189.11 (additional funding 

for project) 

 

T/O College St & 2nd St Imp  (318)   $146,590.62     (per Res. 1679, to 

fund Sidewalk Ph 4) 

T/I Main St Sidewalk Ph 4  (313) $146,590.62 (to complete funding 

of project) 

 

T/O Main St Sidewalk Ph 4  (313) $150,000.00 (to repay loan and 

close project) 

T/I Road Use Tax    (110)   $150,000.00      

 

T/O N First St Imp Project   (314) $180,000.00 (to repay loan and 

close project) 

T/I General    (001) $180,000.00   

 

T/O I & I Line/Grout Ph 2   (316) $    8,501.00 (to close project fund) 

T/I Sewer      (610) $    8,501.00 

 

 

*     *     *     * 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2018. 

 

        

 

 

___________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  February 6, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1684 – A Resolution Approving a Merchant Agreement 

for Credit Card Payment Services.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  December 22, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

GovPayNet is a leader in processing credit & debit card payments on behalf of consumers 

to nearly 2,500 government agencies nationwide. 

 

Company Overview 

GovPayNet started in processing Cash Bail and Criminal Justice-related payments made 

by credit, debit and prepaid debit cards to courts and incarcerating agencies. More than 

500 corrections systems rely on GovPayNet to process bail and other criminal justice 

payments, which account for the majority of the nearly $200 Million in payments the 

company handles for government agencies annually. Now, GovPayNet has been 

increasing its governmental clients for Administrative, Civil Payments, Taxes and 

Utilities. 

 

These service will allow the city to streamline our services and create opportunities for us 

to dedicate staff time toward other needs. 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

  

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1684 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A MERCHANT AGREEMENT WITH 

GOVERNMENT PAYMENT SERVICE, INC. TO PROVIDE ELECTRONIC 

PAYMENT SERVICES FOR ITS CUSTOMERS. 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch collects monies for the provision of utility 

services, user fees and other miscellaneous items (the “Fees”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to accept electronic payments as an option to collect 

said Fees; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Government Payment Services, Inc. is qualified and capable of 

providing said electronic payment services on behalf of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, to that end, Government Payment Services, Inc. has prepared a 

Merchant Agreement to provide said services for the City. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned agreement be and the same is hereby 

approved.  Further, the Mayor is directed to execute said Agreement on behalf of the 

City. 

  

 

 * * * * * * * * 

 

   Passed and approved this 6th day of February, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 


